Public Document Pack

Cycle Forum

To: Councillor Maggie Mansell (Chair)

Councillors Jane Avis and Vidhi Mohan

A meeting of the Cycle Forum will be held on Tuesday, 28 November 2017 at 6.00 pm in F5, Town Hall, Katherine Street, Croydon CR0 1NX

JACQUELINE HARRIS-BAKER
Director of Law and Monitoring Officer
London Borough of Croydon
Bernard Weatherill House
8 Mint Walk, Croydon CR0 1EA

Stephanie Davis 02087266000 x84384 020 8726 6000 stephanie.davis@croydon.gov.uk www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings

AGENDA

Item No. Item Title Report Page nos.

1. Apologies for Absence

To receive any apologies for absence from any members of the Committee.

2. Minutes of the Previous Meeting

5 - 12

To approve the minutes of the meetings held on 4 July 2017 and 12 September 2017 as an accurate record.

3. Urgent Business (if any)

To receive notice of any business not on the agenda which in the opinion of the Chair, by reason of special circumstances, be considered as a matter of urgency.

4. Disclosure of Interests

In accordance with the Council's Code of Conduct and the statutory provisions of the Localism Act, Members and co-opted Members of the Council are reminded that it is a requirement to register disclosable pecuniary interests (DPIs) and gifts

and hospitality to the value of which exceeds £50 or multiple gifts and/or instances of hospitality with a cumulative value of £50 or more when received from a single donor within a rolling twelve month period. In addition, Members and co-opted Members are reminded that unless their disclosable pecuniary interest is registered on the register of interests or is the subject of a pending notification to the Monitoring Officer, they are required to disclose those disclosable pecuniary interests at the meeting. This should be done by completing the Disclosure of Interest form and handing it to the Democratic Services representative at the start of the meeting. The Chair will then invite Members to make their disclosure orally at the commencement of Agenda item 3. Completed disclosure forms will be provided to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion on the Register of Members' Interests.

- 5. Excerpt from Minutes of the meeting of Scrutiny Streets, Environment & Homes Sub-Committee
- 6. Cycle Security Issues
- 7. Cycling Strategy Update
- 8. Croham Railway Park
- 9. West Midlands Close Pass Initiative
- 10. Quietway 7
- 11. Removal of East Croydon Bike Shelter
- 12. Any other Business

Items for Discussion
-Pedestrianisation of the High Street

- 13. Update from Cycling Groups
- 14. Dates of future Cycle Forum meetings

Dates of future Cycle Forum meeting - 20 March 2018

15. Exclusion of the Press and Public

The following motion is to be moved and seconded where it is proposed to exclude the press and public from the remainder of a meeting:

"That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local

13 - 18

Government Act, 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information falling within those paragraphs indicated in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended."

PART B



MINUTES OF THE LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON CYCLE FORUM MEETING TUESDAY 4 JULY 2017

PRESENT:

Cllr Maggie Mansell (Chair)

Cllr Jane Avis

Cllr Stuart King (Cabinet Member for Transport and Environment)

Andy Bebington (CTC)

Jim Bush (Right to Ride Network)

Paul Lowe (Cycling Instructor)

Tim Gould (Mott Macdonald)

Tom Sweeney (Croydon Council)

Malcolm Smith (Croydon Council)

Ian Plowright (Croydon Council)

Ilona Kytomaa (Croydon Council)

Also in attendance: Catherine Early (CCC), Michael To, Hal Bransby and Robert Williams

15/17 Appointment of chair and vice-chair for 2017-18 (Agenda item 1)

Andy Bebington nominated Cllr Maggie Mansell as Chair. The nomination was seconded by Jim Bush.

Jim Bush nominated Andy Bebington as Vice-Chair. The nomination was seconded by Ian Plowright.

Cllr Maggie Mansell and Andy Bebington were duly confirmed as Chair and Vice-Chair of the Cycle Forum for the ensuing municipal year.

16/17 Introductions, apologies for absence and declarations of interest (Agenda item 2)

All attendees introduced themselves. Cllr Stuart King explained that he held the portfolio for transport, which includes cycling, but that this activity links in with a range of other portfolio such as health, culture, housing, etc.

Cllr Sara Bashford and Sue Ritchie had presented their apologies.

Councillors in attendance confirmed that they had recorded their pecuniary interests on the Council's register of interests.

17/17 Minutes of the Cycle Forum meeting held on 21 March 2017 (Agenda item 3)

The minutes were approved as an accurate record of the meeting.

18/17 Potential cycling corridors in Croydon (Agenda item 4)

A map of potential cycling corridors in Greater London was displayed at the meeting. Officers explained that it had been produced using data from a number of different sources to identify current popular cycling routes. Officers explained that the data on the map was underpinned by the results of annual TfL travel surveys, which were based on a small sample of respondents but which had been running for a number of years. Panel members observed that there was no strategic cycle network in the south of the capital and that cycle movements along the A232 were not recorded on the map. While the map showed limited data for Croydon, council officers have identified routes with the borough's Growth Zone which might be worth developing further. They will be looking to use TfL's modelling to gain a better understanding of needs and opportunities in Croydon.

Officers commented that the draft strategy was disappointingly unambitious for cycling and that there was a worrying lack of interest in developing cycling in Outer London. The Cabinet Member suggested that the draft strategy offered a lobbying opportunity for all parties involved in cycling, particularly as Croydon had been acknowledged in the Mayor's draft transport strategy as having great potential for encouraging a wider take-up of cycling.

19/17 The Mayor's Transport Strategy and the new LIP: future involvement of the Cycle Forum (Agenda item 5)

Forum members were given a presentation on the key elements of the Draft Transport Strategy, which included the following:

- The local context: Croydon's population is forecast to increase by 10% between 2016 and 2026
- The draft strategy's three key themes are healthy streets and health people, a good public transport experience, and new homes and new jobs
- The aim is for 80% of all journeys to be made by cycling, walking or public transport
- Croydon is considered to have the highest potential for cycling, with 400,000 "cyclable" trips, although only 50% of journeys are currently made using sustainable forms of transport.
- £770,000 are available to the borough for the period 2019-2022 for walking and cycling schemes
- The LIP3 milestones lead to final Mayoral approval of the borough's programme, scheduled for March 2019

Officers explained that Inner London was close to achieving the target for sustainable travel, having reached 78% of journeys, only 2% short of the target.

In order to boost levels of sustainable travel in the capital, the Mayor is also considering introducing parking levies and additional congestion charging zones.

As regards LIP cycle funding, Forum members were advised that it would be shared between cycle training and other cycle initiatives. In addition, £300,000 have been allocated to Croydon for quietways.

Cycle Forum members were invited to put forward their contributions to consultation on the strategy **by 2 October**.

Officers stated that they had invited the commissioner for walking and cycling in the capital to see proposals for Croydon, and had been told very promptly that there was no additional funding available for these proposals.

However, they highlighted the new "Liveable Neighbourhoods" funding through which they might encourage more cycling (and walking). They added that there was no upper limit to this funding, which constituted a real opportunity for encouraging healthier and more sustainable transport choices.

It was suggested that main roads which were red routes offered the best potential for some segregation of cycle lanes as there were no parked cars along these. Mitcham Road was also being considered as a cycling route, although this might represent a loss of parking spaces.

Forum members were invited to give their views on whether to aim for a costly "gold standard" in cycling schemes or a lower standard aiming to encourage a critical mass of people to take up cycling. It was observed that driver attitude to cyclists, which could be aggressive and dangerous, could change and become more considerate if a sizeable number of residents in the borough took up cycling on the borough's roads. Forum members asked "what does success look like?" and it was felt that it would be seeing a lot of cyclists on the road rather than underused "glitzy" cycling facilities. The best approach would be to implement designs which would encourage many on to their bicycles and could be upgraded at a later date when funding became available.

Officers informed Forum members about the standard to which cycling schemes would be implemented:

- Principal cycling highways have to be planned to London Design Standards
- Quietways would also have to be planned to London Design Standards, but at a lower cost
- There is a third tier of cycling routes, namely, Greenways, which link up the green spaces in the borough.

All the above will require significant levels of funding and will be implemented over a number of years.

Forum members discussed the impact of lost parking spaces on business vitality. Officers were asked to find out whether the reduced number of parking spaces on Southend had a negative impact on local businesses.

Forum members discussed areas in the borough representing a particularly high risk to cyclists, such as the "Lombard" roundabout. Officers announced that TfL representatives were due to attend the 12 September Cycle Forum meeting to present detailed designs for the Fiveways junction.

Officers highlighted joint work between Croydon and TfL on making the A23 "more cyclable", by redesigning footways so that they are shared between pedestrians and cyclists. They added that TfL were partners in Croydon's "Growth Zone".

The Chair suggested that a draft response to the TfL consultation be produced for the 12 September Cycle Forum meeting. She encouraged all Cycle Forum members to send their views on the strategy to Malcolm Smith as soon as possible.

20/17 Cycle Programme scheduled for 2017-18 (agenda item 6)

Officers outlined the elements of the programme, which had previously been shared by e-mail with Cycle Forum members.

21/17 Updates on the Cycling Strategy and the 12 June announcement on the possibility of building new cycling routes in Croydon over the next five years (agenda item 7)

Forum members were reminded that evidence had been provided to the Streets, Environment and Homes Scrutiny Sub-Committee, leading to recommendations for Cabinet. The final strategy document is due to presented at the 16 October meeting of the Cabinet.

It was observed that a key aim was to increase the take-up of cycling, which in turn would encourage more people to be tolerant of cyclists. Forum members cited the example of the Netherlands, where citizenship training included learning to be courteous to cyclists on the road.

Forum members commented that fear was a major obstacle to cycling, with junctions presenting a particularly high risk to cyclists. They stressed that cycling on the highway had to become considerably safer for large numbers of people to take up this means of transport.

Officers explained that the 12 June announcement in the papers had omitted to mention the funding required to implement the cycle route building programme.

Significantly expanding the cycle route network is likely to take a lot longer than five years.

22/17 Updates from cycling groups (agenda item 8)

Wheels for Wellbeing: The group has suspended its activities during the period of school sports days but will soon be resuming its rides every Tuesday, Friday and Saturday.

Cycle Instructor: There will be 160 places spread between four different locations available for cycle training over the summer. Some bicycles will be available on loan. Forum members were informed that Croydon was far more active in terms of cycle training than most other boroughs.

Faiths Together in Croydon will be holding an interfaith bike ride on 9 July at Croydon Arena, followed by a picnic. Cycle Forum members were encouraged to take part.

23/17 Dates of future meetings (Agenda Item 15)

Tuesday 12 September 2017 at 6pm Tuesday 28 November 2017 at 6pm Tuesday 20 March 2018 at 6pm

The meeting ended at 7.45pm.



MINUTES OF THE LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON CYCLE FORUM MEETING TUESDAY 12 SEPTEMBER 2017

PRESENT:

Isabelle Clement (Wheels for Wellbeing)
Jim Bush (Right to Ride Network)
Peter Salter (Croydon Council)
Ilona Kytomaa (Croydon Council)
Stephanie Davis (Croydon Council)

Also in attendance: Hal Bransby

25/17 Introductions, apologies for absence and declarations of interest (Agenda item 1)

No members were present.

Apologies had been presented by Paul Lowe and Craig Hollins (Cycling Instructor) and by Gareth Redmond-King (CCC).

As the meeting was inquorate at 7.45pm, it was ended.

26/17 Minutes of the Cycle Forum meeting held on 4 July 2017 (Agenda item 2)

This item was deferred as the meeting was inquorate.

27/17 Cycle security issues (Agenda item 3)

This item was deferred as the meeting was inquorate.

28/17 Updates from cycling groups (agenda item 4)

This item was deferred as the meeting was inquorate.

29/17 Any other business (agenda item 5)

There was none.

30/17 Dates of future meetings (Agenda Item 6)

Tuesday 28 November 2017 at 6pm Tuesday 20 March 2018 at 6pm

The meeting ended at 7.45pm.



Excerpt from Minutes of the meeting of Scrutiny Streets, Environment & Homes Sub-Committee held on 12 September 2017

34/17 Fiveways Croydon - A review of the design proposals subject to public Consultation

The Deputy Cabinet Member for Transport and Environment gave the apologies for the Cabinet Member for Transport and Environment and attended in his place.

The Deputy Cabinet Member for Transport and Environment informed the Committee that he lived near the Fiveways Junction and was acutely aware of the issues suffered; including delays for motorists and the dangerous conditions for cyclists, pedestrians and motorcyclists. It was agreed that these issues would worsen over the coming years and that change was necessary, however the Council's position was that a road widening option was favoured over a fly-over above Duppas Hill Park and maintaining the Waddon Hotel. While improvement works to the area had been consulted on previously in 2015, the previous consultation had not proposed any improvements to the Fiveways junction. It was stated by the Deputy Cabinet Member that the current consultation proposal had taken into account the Council's view and Transport for London (TfL) was thanked for conducting a thorough consultation process.

The Deputy Cabinet Member highlighted to the Committee that the Council's preferred option of building a new bridge next to the current bridge would minimise disruption, and the proposal to change the junction to four-ways would improve traffic flow and safety. While these were outlined to be improvements it was noted that scope remained for the scheme to be further improved, particular for cyclists.

Thomas Holmes of TfL provided the Committee with a presentation which outlined the difficulties of the junction and recognised that the A23 was a strategic route which acted as a bypass to central Croydon. Furthermore, the importance of the link to the surrounding towns of Wallington and Carshalton was recognised.

It was stated that TfL noted that Fiveways was a strategic junction in south London, but was a hostile environment in particular for pedestrians, cyclists and motorcyclists, and would only worsen with the anticipated growth that Croydon would experience in the coming years. In addition, TfL recognised that the bridge over the railway line needed to be replaced by 2023 as it was coming to the end of its useful life.

The key project objectives were outlined to the Committee as increasing traffic capacity, reducing journey time, upgrading the pedestrian environment, improving cycle routes, and enhancing the 'place' function to develop Waddon as a local centre. In line with the draft Mayor's Transport Strategy there had been a focus on the healthy streets approach, and the proposed scheme had been measured with the healthy streets factors and was considered to meet over half.

The Committee were informed that replacing a bridge over a railway line was a difficult procedure so TfL were looking to make the process as simple as possible, and as such they were proposing a new bridge alongside the

existing bridge which was anticipated to minimise disruption. However, it was noted that building the new bridge would require the acquisition of two commercial properties.

The proposals further sought to realign the road layout which would require the acquisition of a residential block, however would increase the length of time when the lights were green traffic and pedestrians. Furthermore the proposals included making Epsom Road two ways and introducing step cycle tracks in both directions.

TfL, it was stated, was looking to provide more green space and seating wherever possible within the scheme which would improve the pedestrian environment, including the planting of 30 additional trees in the area. In addition, improvement to cycling infrastructure were proposed including new cycling parking and advanced stop lines.

Councillor Buttinger left the meeting at 7pm.

It was anticipated that there would be additional capacity on Stafford Road which would enable people to do a left turn, and a bus lane along Stafford Road would be introduced to facilitate the movement of sustainable forms of transport.

While the deadline for consultation responses was 18 September, TfL stated they were happy to relax the deadline to receive responses from the Committee as part of the consultation. Once all responses had been received they would be reviewed and it was anticipated that a revised scheme would be released at the end of 2017.

TfL stated that it was felt that the proposals supported the council's aim to develop the Waddon area and recognised that it was not an easy problem to solve but that balance of needs had been sought. It was further stated that it hoped that the proposals could be improved in light of the consultation responses.

Mr Cheeswright, Secretary of the Stafford Road Action Committee, addressed the Committee stating that at least 20 local residents were totally opposed to the proposals. It was strongly suggested that no improvements to the junction would be experienced until the Experimental Realignment Scheme was removed as the current traffic light phasing did not align with traffic movements. Mr Cheeswright further called for Stafford Road to be left as it was and the proposals for parking bays to be removed to be scraped as local residents used them.

The Stafford Road Action Committee further requested TfL noted the statement of traffic movements which had been undertaken in 2011. In conclusion, Mr Chesswright stated he would rate the Stafford Road proposals as one out of ten only as the scheme did not address the issues that were experienced by local residents.

Mr Cooper, Croydon Cycling Campaign, stated that he was also a resident of Waddon and a cyclists. Mr Cooper drew the Committees attention to figures that suggested that overall traffic in the area was down 16% and over Waddon Bridge was down by 15% in the last 15 years, however demand for cycling was up despite the dangers posed by the junction.

It was stated that a key change to the proposals would be at the junction of Epsom Road and Duppas Hill, which would require cyclists to cross fast flowing traffic to remain in the cycle lane. It was suggested that the solution

was to have a two way cycle lane on the station side which would create a safe route into town.

With regards to the bridge, Mr Cooper noted that cycle lanes would be provided, but not in the section after the bridge and into the junction and it was suggested that there was space available that would enable cycle lanes to be provided in both directions that would enable residents to safely cycle to Waddon Leisure Centre safely. Mr Cooper concluded that it was important to provide safe cycle options across the junction to enable cyclists to feel safer. In response, TfL stated that the traffic data from the Department for Transport was that over the past five years demand had increased in the area. However, the suggestion that the cycle lanes on Epsom Road be moved to both be on station side would be reviewed as it the aim of TfL to improve cycle movement in the area.

With regards to the north/south cycle links on the A23, it was stated that it was TfL's policy to link cycle lanes to longer routes and there were no plans, at the time, to have a north/south route. Furthermore, a road safety audit had concluded that a merge location was not acceptable if there was a cycle lane on A23.

TfL further stated that due to limited highway space it would not be possible to have a dedicated bus lane, cycle lane and two lanes of traffic on Stafford Road. As such, a judgment call was required and with around 1,000 people per hour using buses through this junction it was decided that a bus lane was a more pertinent use of the highway space.

The Committee raised concerns that the omission of a north/south cycle route fulfilled the project objectives. In light of many people wanting to complete short cycle journeys, such as to the leisure centre, school, the station, and McDonalds, it was imperative that safe routes were provided otherwise people would cycle on the pavement. Concerns were further raised that many of those who would wish to cycle short routes were young people and it was the responsibility of TfL and the council to ensure safe routes were available. In response to Member concerns, TfL stated that if a person did not feel safe cycling on the roads then they should not. It was important that people cycled only when they felt safe. While TfL wanted to encourage cycling and introduce segregated lanes, a balance was required when there was limited highway space.

The Chair noted that within the proposals being consulted on there was not sufficient space, however stated that if a small slither of land from the Morrisons site was purchased then sufficient space would be created to provide a safe cycle route. The TfL representative stated that he would request the Design Team review this suggestion.

Members were informed that step track cycle facilities were at a different level to the carriageway and that introducing signal control at all junctions would ensure that all crossings would have a green man function, which was not the current case.

The Committee noted that the left turn into Epsom Road would be removed and requested that this be reviewed. In addition, it was suggested that the proposals missed an opportunity to widen Epsom Road with the removal of a electricity sub-station and small blocks of flats to provide for a wider road and development area. Concerns were further raised in regards to accessibility of Waddon Station and a request was made that the scheme was future proofed

in light of possible future works to improve accessibility.

In response, the TfL representative stated that a survey was undertaken over several days and it was found that very few people did make a left turn into Epsom Road however feedback had been received and so it was being reviewed.

In regards to the suggestion of widening Epsom Road, it was stated that the proposals sought to limit the number of Compulsory Purchase Orders (CPO) required. To successfully apply for a CPO it would be required to demonstrate that those properties would need to be removed for the road to be sufficiently wide. In light of the proposal already providing for two way traffic and two way cycle lane it would be difficult to prove. TfL were aware that some people did do drop offs outside the station, however given that there were double red lines it should not be done and it was not proposed to introduce.

Members noted that the report did not include reference to consulting disability groups despite the necessity to ensure places, such as Fiveways, were accessible. It was further noted that the proposals included the relocation of bus stops and concerns were raised that those with disabilities may find it difficult traveling the additional distance to the bus stop.

TfL, in response, stated that they consulted everyone but did not specifically target any groups. The Head of Transport confirmed that no specific groups were consulted in regards to this consultation exercise, however a walkabout had been undertaken the previous Friday and members of Vision Croydon and the council's accessibility team were involved. This walkabout had been very useful for receiving feedback on accessibility and improvements that could be made to the scheme.

The Committee stressed the need to ensue pedestrians and cyclists were kept apart from the traffic and stated that painted cycle lanes were not sufficient as motorists often intruded in such lanes.

Mr Cheeswright noted that there had been a number of instances of cyclists using the pavement around Fiveways due to safety concerns, and further raised concerns that the nitrogen dioxide fumes had not been taken into consideration.

Mr Cooper concluded that he was concerned that TfL were looking to spend £100m on a scheme that did not encourage cycling and stressed that painted on cycle lanes were not sufficient. In addition, Mr Cooper went on to raise concerns in regards to advance stop lines which were considered dangerous as they required cyclists to take off quickly and move out of the way of traffic so as to not impede traffic flow.

The Deputy Cabinet Member concluded that the Council were keen to ensure that the best scheme was implemented, which included provisions for safe cycling. In light of the discussion, the Deputy Cabinet Member went onto note that prohibiting a left turn from Stafford Road into Epsom Road would remove the opportunity for station drop-offs and as such suggested a drop-off by Platform 1 may need to be considered ahead of possible future station improvements.

In conclusion, the Chair noted that the Committee was in broad agreement with the aims and that most of the proposals were not contentious as there was broad agreement on realigning the road and the introduction of a new bridge, which would cause less disruption and reduce conflict. Furthermore it was welcomed that the programme had been extended to include the

Fiveways junction and the addition of public realm improvements. The Committee were encouraged that there would be a review of the cycle lanes on Epsom Road in light of the comments of the Croydon Cycling Campaign, however recognised that there was not an unlimited pot of money for the improvement works.

Members, however, raised concerns that the proposals would lead to conflict between pedestrians and cyclists due to the lack of dedicated cycle facilities on the north/south route and the safety concerns. Due to these concerns it was hoped that TfL would take into consideration the suggestion that some land be purchased from Morrisons to provide for a cycle lane as it was important to take into consideration how cyclists would access Waddon, furthermore the Committee wanted to encourage residents in the local area to use the Waddon Leisure Centre. The Committee further requested that disability groups be given an extended deadline to respond to the consultation to ensure that their views were taken into consideration and that the scheme was as accessible as possible.

CONCLUSIONS: ☐ That the overall aims of the scheme were recognised and supported; ☐ That most of the proposals were not contentious and supported; including realigning the road and introduction of a new bridge; ☐ That the extension of the proposals to include the Fiveways junction was welcomed: ☐ The improvements to the public realm were supported; ☐ But that TFL should accept that this section of the A23 is a key part of the Waddon locality, and that Waddon residents, including pedestrians and cyclists use the A23 road and pavements for vital local trips ☐ And the committee was concerned that the proposals failed to meet all the standards set out in TFL's new policy of Healthy Streets especially the lack of north south segregated cycle paths from Epsom Road southwards. ☐ That some aspects of the proposals be reviewed to improve cycle provision to ensure segregated local cycle trips and avoid cyclists

In reaching its recommendations, the Committee made the following

The Committee **RESOLVED** to recommend to Transport for London that:

1. To amend the proposals to ensure needs of local residents, pedestrians and cyclists are taken into account;

having to use pavements, which would to the detriments of

pedestrians.

- 2. The cycle lanes on Epsom Road be reviewed to have both cycle lanes on the station side to improve cycle safety;
- 3. The scheme be reviewed to reduce conflict between cyclists and pedestrians;
- 4. Consideration be given to how cyclists would travel around Waddon safely, especially young people cycling to school, parks, the station and McDonalds;
- 5. A dedicated cycle lane north/south be provided south of Epsom Road;
- 6. The possibility of acquiring land from the Morrisons site be reviewed to provide for these segregated cycle lanes; and

7. Disability groups be approached to participate in the consultation to ensure the final plans are accessible to all.